
UNITED NATIONS 

• 
ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL 
·Thirty-filth Session 

Thursday, 4 Apri11963c 
at 11.55 a.m. 

OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Agenda item 4: 
Report of the International Monetary Fund. • • l'l 

President: Mr.·Aifonso PATINO (Colombia). 

Present: 
Representatives of the followb:ig States: Argentina, 

Australia, Austria, Colombia, Czechoslovakia, El 
Salvador, Ethiopia, France, India, Italy, Japan, Jordan, 
Senegal, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United 
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, 
United States of America, Uruguay, Yugoslavia. 

Observers for the following Member States: Al
bania, Brazil, Bulgaria, Canada, Ceylon, Chile, China, 
Dominican Republic, Federation of Malaya, Ghana, 
Hungary, Ireland, Israel, Nepal, Netherlands, Paki
stan, Peru, Romania, SWeden, Thailand, Turkey, 
Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic. 

Representatives of the following specialized agen
cies: International Labour Organisation; United 
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organi
zation; World Health Organization; International 
Monetary Fund. 

The representative of the International Atomic 
Energy Agency. 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

Report of the lnternationa I Monetary Fund (E/3696 and Add .l) 

1. Mr. J ACOBSSON (Managing Director of the Inter
national Monetary Fund), introducing the report of 
the International Monetary Fund, recalled that when 
he had taken office in April 1957, just after the Suez 
crisis, the. world had been experiencing a period of 
great difficulties. However, efforts to combat those 
difficulties had already been under way arid much 
progress ~[!d been made since then. The year 1962 
had also been one of considerable economic and 
financial as well as political difficulties. The decline 
on the stock exchanges on both sides of the Atlantic 
in the spring of 1962 and the massive outflow of funds 
from Canada in June, with the consequent speculation 
regarding the value of the Canadian dollar, had been 
followed by the Cuban crisis and the Chinese attack 
on India. Then had' come· the failure of the negotia
tions for the United Kingdom's entry to the European 
Economic Community, the conseq'Jences of which it 
was as yet too early to evaluate. Howeve ... ~, as re
gards the position of sterling, the United Kingdom 
had a stand-by arrangement of $1,000 millie .n with 
the Fund. 

2. The decline on the stock exchanges had been 
sharper on the continent of Europe than in New York 
and London.· But the decline · had not ushered in a 
recession or a depression, as had sometimes been 
the case in the past; business had continued to im-

NEW YORK 

prove both in tbe United States and in Europe, even 
after the decline. ·The reason why that decline had 
not been the forerunner of a recession was that it 
had been regarded not as a reflection of worsening 
business but as a technical adjust~ent, brought. on by 
the realization that the post-war inflationary rise in 
prices had come to an end. The level of wholesale 
prices in the United States had remained practically 
stationary for five years, and in other colmtr.ies the 
rise had been less marked than in earJier years and 
there had beer1 no signs of the resumption of per
sistent inflation. However, the quotations of many 
securities, which had been bought merely as a specu
lation or as a safeguard against inflation, had risen 
to fancy prices. Once the adjustment had been made, 
the position of those securities had become much 
sounder. Business in the United States had been at 
first somewhat hesitant, but as demand had been kept 
up, production had also been maintained and, in some. 
cases, even increased. The increases had occurred 
in the area of "final purchases"-goods purchased for 
consumption, investment and export, excluding inven
tory changes-which explained the good tenor of 
business during the second half of 1962 and the 
beginning of 1963. In the Utiited States, as well as in 
most other countries, home demand for consumer 
goods had been sustained, investment had not gen
e:t'ally declined, and exports· had usually risen. In 
1962, world trade had increased by 5 or 6 per cent, 
which showed not only the resilience of business but 
also that the measures to free world trade and ensure 
prompt payments had had a good effect. 

3. In June 1962, the Canadian GOvernment had 
adopted a number of domestic measures to alleviate· 
the strain on the balance of payments and had ~sked 
the Fund and institutions in the United States and the 
United Kingdom for assistance. It had obtained a 
drawing equivalent to $300 million from the Fund and 
of $750 million from other sources. That combination 
of measures had stemmed the capital outflow and 
reliev!3d the pressure on the foreign exchange market. 
Canada had now been able to increase its foreign ex
change reserves to more than the pre-crisis level. 
In addition, Canada had recently announced the re
moval of all the import surcha:rges which had been 
imposed as a temporary measure at the time of the 
crisis. 

4. The restoration of the Canadian exchange posi.tion 
had been a remarkable demonstration of the effective
ness of international monetary co-operation and of 
the speed with which assistance could be mobilized. 
International monetary co-operation had also played 
a significant role at the time of the Cuban and the 
Chinese-Indian disturbances. There had been a strong 
private demand for gold, but that had been met with
out difficulty from current supplies and the London 
gold pool, and the foreign exchange markets had been 

·only slightly affepted. On those occasions, there had 
never been any doubt about the determination of both 
the national anO. the international monetary authori-

17 E/SR.1245. 



,------

18 Economic and Social Council - Thirty-fifth Session 

ties to intervene energetically if the need arose. On 
the markets also there had been an awareness that if 
they wished to intervene effectively, the monetary 
authorities had the means to do so: the reciprocal 
central bank credits that had been and were still. 
being negotiated, the London gold IJI(lOl, and the re
sources of the Fund. 
5. The technical arrangements were valuable, but 
the discussions which had led to them were equally 
so, and they would be continued to ensure exchange 
of information and more effective co-operation be• 
tween the central banks. 

6. The Fund had been greatly strengthened over the. 
past two years. Mter e~iensive discussions in the 
Fund and the Board of Governors, the basic provi
sions of general borrowing arrangements which would 
make additional supplies of foreign currency avail
able to the Fund had been incor~rated in a decision 
adopted by the Fund in January 1962, under which the 
ten main industrial countries concerned indicated 
their willingness to lend the Fund up to $6,000 
million. Y That decision had come into effect on 
24 October 1962, when the eighth country, the United 
States, formally adhered to it; the total commitments 
of the seven other countries had amounted to the 
equivalent of $5,650 million at the time of the United 
States adherence. Of the two remaining countries, 
Belgium had since adhered to the decision, but 
Canada had not yet done so, although he understood 
that a bill for that purpose was now ready for sub
mission to the Canadian Parliament. In the cases 
where Parliamentary approval had been required, 
it had been obtained virtually without opposition. 
Switzerland, which was nt)t a member of the Fund, 
had been invited to associate itself with those 
arrangements and a bill had been submitted to the 
Swiss Federal · Parliam3nt within the last month pro
viding for Swiss association with the currency sup. 
port operations of the Fund up to an amount equivalent 
to a maximum of $200 million. 
7. Supplementary resources made available to a 
member of the Fund under the new arrangements 
would be repayable when the member's particular 
problem was solved and in any event within not more 
than three to five years. That was in harmopy with 
the principles and practices already developed by the · 
Fund •. What was new was the commitment of the par
ticipating members to lend to the fund in order to 
enable it to forestall or remedy any impairrn.ent of 
the international monetary system. 
s. That framework had b~.~l) ,further strengthened in 
other ways. In July 19~1, the Executive Directors had 
clarified the use to be made of the Fund's resources 
in dealing with deficits attributable to capital trans
fers, and' in July 1962, they had adopted a decision 
setting out the principles whic,~ should govern the 
choice of currencie~ in drawings and repurchases. It 
would be recalled that in 1959, members' quotas h~d 
been increased by 50 per cent and sometimes sub
stantially more. thus raising their total from $9,000 
million in 1958 to $15,000 million at the end of 1961, 
excluding the $6fOOO million available under the gen
eral borrowing arrangements. With those resources 
at its disposal, the ·Fund would be able to play a deci
sh·e role in rendering assistance to member coun
tries in their efforts to pursue policies compatible 
with the Fund's principles and· practices. In addition, 

Y See E/3696, appendix XI, sect. D. 

the Fund's capacity to·· give massive support had had 
a decisive influence in checking the speculative 
movement of funds and maintaining calm on the 
foreign exchange markets. 
9, However, ~tability was not the only problem; to 
meet the n. ~1s of rapidly growing production and 
economic activity generally, an expansion in liquidity 
was needed. The inflationary period which had fol
lowed the Second World War had ended, and condi
tions c>n the world markets had radically changed by 
1960. 

10. A new sit~'2ation had emerged, characterized by 
increasingly fierce. competition, and new policies and 
practices were needed to meet it. First, when it 
had become impossible to raise prices any further, it 
had been· necessary to pay greater attention to costs. 
It had not been easy to convince the public or even 
the business world that the situation had really 
changed, particularly where the problem of wages 
was involved. The Council of Economic Advisers to 
the President of the United States had therefore 
rendered a valuable sel'"\Tice in laying down gllide
lines, in their report to the President early in 1962, 
for permissible wage increases, i.e., increases with
in the margin of rises in productivity. Similar guide
lines had been indicated in othe:r countries over the 
past year and the whole matter had bee .. l discussed in 
terms of the beginning of an "incomes policy". Such 
a policy need not run counter to the. requirements of 
a market economy system; on th€~ contr~ry, in 
present-day economies, which were often dom.inated 
by large organizations and groupin~ of industry and 
labour, some guidance might be 11ery necessary for 
the proper working of the system. 

11. Secondly, it could no longer be taken for granted 
that an adequate increase in liquidity would occur 
without special action. Business might use its own 
liquid resources more freely and request increased 
credits from the banking system, but such develop
ment had at least to be underpinned by offiCial poli
cies. The expansionary public financing policies pur
sued by the United States in recent years had involved 
a certain risk, but it had been necessat•y to take it, 
for a non-expansionary policy in the United States 
would have had serious repercussions on economic 
activity in the world as a whole. It was clear from 
the budget just announced by the United Kingdom that 
it, too, was pursuing a policy of expansion. 

12. There was an increasing awareness of t~e need 
to co-ordinate economic policies, particularly those 
of the main industrial countries. Such co-ordination 
was in the interest of both the developed countries 

·and the countries producing raw materials. Expan
sion in the industrialized countries led to heavier 

. purchases of raw materials from the primary pro
ducing countries and to a general expansion of world 
trade, which provided an outlet for'the exports of the 

· primary producers' developing industries. As the 
Council was aware from past debates, the economic 
policies of the developed countries were of the high
est importance to the under-developed countries also. 

13. Although the Fund had carried through some 
11ery large transactions with highly industrialized 
countries, those with less developed countries had 
been far tnore numerous. There had been trans
actions between the Furid and all but one of the Latin 
American republics and, over the past year, all but 
one of the draWings and all but one of the stand-by 



1245th meeting - 4 April 1963 19 

arrangements had been with developing countries. 
The Fund had thus atJquired an intimate .Jmowledge of 
the countries' problems and had been impressed by 
the efforts made to establish and maintain orderly 
monetary conditions in many of them. 
14. One of the major difficulties encountered by the 
countries producing raw materials ·was the fluctua
tions in the prices of primary commodities, which 
created instability in their export earnings. The 
amount of assistance tpe Fund had provided to meet 
short-term balance-of-payments fluctuations in de
veloping countries bad greatly expanded in recent 
years; there had also been an increase in the pro
portion of oases where difficulties had arisen in part 
from declining or stagnant export proceeds. As the 
countries exporting pri-mary commodities had few 
reserves, the fluctuations often prevented them from 
sustaining the imports of the capital goods they 
needed for steady development. . 
15 The Fund had considered the matter carefully 
and in February 1963, it had adopted certain deci
sions regarding the assistance it could render in 
such cases. Those decisions were to be found in a 
report on compensatory financing of export fluctua
tions which the Fund had prepared for submission to 
the Commission on International Commodity Trade • .Y 
The Fund had decided in particular to crea.te a new 
compensatory financing facility which woUld broaden 
its balance of support to member countries, particu"!" 
Iarly the primary producers. 'l'he new facility; which 
would normally amount to 25 per cent of the mem
bers' quota, would enable the Fund to grant assist
ance more readily in cases of payments difficulties 
resulting from export s~ortfalls. Firs~- the Fund 
would have to be satisfied that the shortfall was 
of a short-term character and also that it was 
due to circumstances beyond the member's control. 
Secondly, the member country would nee~ to show 
willingness to co-operate with the Fund l:..l. finding 
solutions for its balance-of-payments diff1cultieE!. 
Th~' new facility would not reduce the amount of 
assistance available under the Fund's ordinary draw
ing policy because it was prepa:red to grant a waiver 
and permit outstanding draWlngs to exceed an amount 

• equal to 125 per cent of a country's quot~,. where 
necessary. The general intent of the new fa01llty was 
to gi:ve · all member countries desirous of solving 
their balance~of-payments problems the assurance 
of ready support from the Fund in meeting CU.fficul
ties arising out of genuine short-term export short
falls. Jrhe application of the new policy still remained 
to be worked out in the light of experience, but he 
was co1nvinced that it would provide a basis for genu
ine ass1istance to and co-operation With the develop
ing countries. 

16. · Tht:~ Fund had also decided to examine the pos
sibility 11'lf raising the quotas of certain primary pro
. duoing c.ountries in order to make · m·e»re adequate 
provision\ for covering the fluctuations in their export 
proceeds" The Fund would be making a closer study 
of the St1bjeot in the coming months. The report 
already m1entioned clearly stated that compensatory 
financing 'l~as only one of the means of improving the 
condition o:f less developed countries; other action, in 
many diffe11'ent fields; was required from the develop-

, ing countrH:3S themselves, a~d fro:m the developed 
countries ar.~d international institutions. 

y See Compensatory :Financln~ of Export Fluctuations~ a report by 
the lnternatlonal 'Monetary Fund ( ashtngton, o.c;, February l963). 

17. In dealing with that problem, there must be a 
division of responsibilities, as well as a common 
determination to work hard in order to ertsure sus
tained development. Industrial qountries must both 
permit .and encourage, to. the greatest possible e~ent, 
ready access to their markets for the products of the 
developing countries, including any products of new 
industries which , they could export on a competitive 
basis. The whole subject of general trade policies 
was being widely discussed, particularly by the Con
tracting Parties to GAT'r and in the Prepar.atory 
Committee of the United Nations Conference on Trade 
and Development. The second responsibility of the 
industrial countries was to provide sustained teohni!"' 
cal and financial assJstance to the less developed· 
countries. While there was a growing understanding 
in the more advanced countries of the appropriate
ness of financial assistance, there was also a feeling 
'that it should be used more effectively, and he be
lieved that a certain review would not lessen the 
amount of aid, but would ensure its continuation. 
Thirdly, the adoption by the leading industrial coun
tries of general expansionist policies was of great 
importance, leading to a strengtheni~g of the demand 
·for the products of the less developed countries .. 

:18. The latter countries had the responsibility, as 
sovereign States, to conduct their own affairs, to 
maintain law and order, to educate and care for their 
people and to administer their finances and their 
econo~ies. tn so doing, they must frame their pol~
cies in a manner which would best contribute to the1r 
own growth and development, and while there were 
differences in their resources and in other respects, 
some general observations could be made. Industrial 
development and the establishment of new businesses 
required first men possessing a svirit of enter
prise and the technical knowledge needed to initiate 
'new projects or develop existing plant, and,secondly, 
free resources, L.e., savings, to finance genUine and 
lasting development. Those fundamental principles of 
economics must be respected, whether a country had 
.a State .. controlled economy, a market economy or a 
mixed system. Foreign aid would be forthcoming, but 
it could play only a ·umited role in relation to total 
'leeds. Outside expertise could often be useful in the 
rormulation of taxation and expt)nditure policies, and 
the Fund was substantially expanding its technical 
assistance services with respect to fiscal, credit and 
monetary matters. 

19. Countries with limited real resources were often 
tempted to· rely too much on the banking system to 
finance expenditures by creating money-in oth~r 
words, by inflation. It was now generally appreciated 
that the burden of inflation fell mostly on the poor, 
whom developing policies were designed primarily to 
benefit. Moreover, inflation' gave rise to '\\indfall 
profits and a flight of capital which could not be 
halted by any system of controls and which meant 
that the country affected could not retain for its own 
use all the savings of its people, much less provid) 
.any inducement to investment or assistance from 
abroad. In many cases, inflation also led to an ov.er
valuad currency, with all the consequent harm and 
distortions to the economy. Many of the Governors of 
the Fund had agreed, at the annual meeting in Sep
tember 1962, that inflation was most harmful to the 
economies and growth of their countries, and the 
Fund had found in its contacts with members that 

· such sentiments were decisively gaining ground 
among persons who pad hitherto ~esist~d them. More 



20 Economic and Social Council- Thirty-fifth Session 

and more countries were taking measu;r.es to stabilize 
the economy, in the full ·realization that a period of 
readjustment might be necessary before sustained 
growth could be resumed; <~xperience had shown, 
however, that that period need not be very harsh or 
very long, especially with support from international 
institutions and friendly Governments. 

20. Despite the understandable disappointment of 
many countries with a desperately low per caput in• 
come, there was no easy method, such as deficit 
financing, for accelerating the rate of growth in any . 
type of economy. The difficult problems of growth 
requirecl. detailed and hard work, uuder stable mone
tary conditions, and the technical expertise necessary 
to assist national authorities to develop to the full the 
resources at their dispc Jal was fortunately available 
from many international agencies, including the Inter
national Bank for Reconstruction and Development
and its affiliates-the Special Fund and the Expanded 
Programme of Technical Assistance. In addition, 
when the proper basis had been laid, the richer coun
tries must be ready to give appropriate aid in the 
form of finannial and technical assistance, by opening 
their markets to the products of the developing coun
tries and by pursuing suitable expansionist economic 
policies in their ·own countries. 

21. Mr. MATSUI (Japan) noted with sntisfaction that, 
despite pressure on the Canadian dollar early in the 
year and a temporary rise in the price of gold at the 
time of the Cuban crisis, the international monetary 
situation in 1962 had been satisfactory on the whole 
and the two key currencies for international exchange 
transactions had remained stable, owing largely to 
the restoration of equilibrium in the trade balance 
among western countries and the great improvement 
in their international Ur:_uidity position. However, 
international co-operation in the field of monetary 
policy on the part of industrial countries, as in the 
1961 gold pool agreement and the ".swap" agreements 
since March 1962 between the United States and west
ern European countries, had also contributed to sta
bility. A further measure had been taken in January 
1962, when the Fund had entered into a stand-by 
borrowing arrangement for the equivalent of $6,000 
million with ten industrhlized countries, including 
Japan, to enable them to deal with balance-of-pay
ments difficulties that might. arise from current 
exchange transactions as well as from short-term 
capital movements. The agreemento which had come 
into force in October 1962, would play an invaluable 
role in preventing any disturbances in international 
exchange transactions as a result of speculative 
short-term capital movements. 

22. The record figures for the Fund's activities 
during the year covered by the report were eloquent 
testimony of its important role in the promotion of a 
stable international economy. At the same time as 
the currencies of western European countries had 
again become convertible, the percentage represented 
by purchases of United States dollars in all drawings 
from the Fund had di:minished considerably. Japanese 
currency had been used for the first time in the 
Fund's exchange transactions in 1961-1962, andJapan 
in turn had entered into a stand.:..by agreem~nt i~ 
January 1962 for $305 million, constituting a valu
able second-line credit in support of the stabilization 
of Japan's economy, although it had not been neces• 
sary· to invoke the agreement. 

23. In contrast to the generally favourabla situation 
of the industria) countries, only a few ofthe primary
producing countries had been able to increase their 
foreign exchange reserves, and it was encouraging 
to note that the Fund had assisted those countries to 
a greater extent than Zn any previous year. ~is dele
gation was glad to learn that the Fund had made a 
careful study of ways of dealing with the balance-of
payments difficulties of the primary-producing coun
tries arising from fluctuations in commodity prices 
and had produced a report on compensatory financing 
proposing higher quotas for the developing countries 
and .the application of a more flexible policy to draw-

. ings by the developing countries in order to offset th~ 
decline in their export earnings-the most practical 
and desirable measure for compensatory financing. to 
cope with that decline. 

24. Japan's economy had enjoyed a sustained high 
rate of growth since 1959, but excessive investment 
in the private sector and a rapid increase in domestic 
demand had led to a deterioration in the balance of 
payments. His Government had applied appropriate 
monetary, fiscal and other measures to curb exces
sive investment activities and to restore the balance 
of payments, including the stand-by agreement with 
the Fund and sizable borrowings from the United 
States in the form of bank loans and acceptance 
credits. Those measures had led to a considerable 
improvement in the situation, and the authorities had 
been gradually relaxing their stringent monetary 
policy since the autumn of 1962. 

25. The problems hindering a sound and steady 
development of Japan's economy included the in
efficiency of such sectors as agriculture, small
scale industry and some heaVY industry, discrimina
tion against Japanese exports, and a chronic deficit 
in invisible trade. Nevertheless, since September 
1959, the Government had been implementing a pro
gramme designed to accelerate the liberalization of 
foreign exchange and trade, with a view to co-operat
ing with other member countries of the Fund in order 
to promote the expansion of the world economy 
through free and multilateral trade. Eighty-eight per 
cent of Japan's total imports, calculated on the basis 
of 1959, had been freed from trade restrictions as 
{rom 1 October 1962, and it had been announced in 
February 1963 that Japan would cease to invoke arti
cle 12 of GATT and that the remaining restrictions 
would be maintained in accordance with the relevant 
procedures of GATT. The Government also intended 
to accelerate the elimination of the remaining re
strictions on payments for invisible current trans
actions and to accept, as soon as possible, the obliga
tions under article VUI of the Al~ioles of Agreement 
of the Fund. 

26. Japan depended largely on international trade 
for its economic growth, and the key to the improve
ment of its balance-of-payments position lay in the 
promotion of exports; consequ~ptly, it was hoped 
that the countries still maintaining discriminatory 
trade restrictions against Japan would appreciate its 
Government's efforts to liberalize trade and would 
co-operate. by abolishing such restrictions. 

27. Mr. DUPRAZ (France) said that he would limit 
his remarks to three subjects covered in the report 
before the Council: the general state of the French 
economy, with particular reference to foreign trade 
and payments: the international monetary system; 



1245th meeting - 4 April 1963 21 

and the possibility of action by the Fund With regard 
to the compensatory financing of export fluctuations. 

28. The Fund's report indicated that in 1961 France 
had become the world's leading creditor country and 
it was a fact that the continuing balance-of-payments 
surplus and the accompanying increase in foreign 
reserves were clear indications of France's eco
nomic recovery and the restored firmness of th~ 
franc. A balanced appraisal of the economic situation 
of France was possible, however, only if a number of 
facts apparent after four years of very rapid expan
sion, and the factors which were at present engaging 
the attention of the French Government, were taken 
into account. 
29. The over.:..an picture was indeed satisfactory; 
expansion had continued at a rate sufficient to main
tain full employment and to raise the general level of 
living year by year. The gross national product had 
increased by 6.3 per cent in 1962, household con
sumption by 6. 7 per cent in volume, and the effective 
work-week exceeded forty-six hours. Production had 
increased considerably in all sectors, despite some 
unsteadiness in investments and some reduction in 
the self-financing capacity of enterprises. Agricultu
ral output had been 9.5 per cent higher than in 1961, 
owing not only to a bumper grain harvest in the pre
ceding year but also to a notable improvement in 
productivity. More than one quarter of the active 
population was still engaged in agriculture, and that 
was felt to be a source of imbalance; but humani
tarian, social and political considerations could not 
be ignored, and the annual rate of change-over was 
unlikely to be more than 1.5 per cent, so that the 
problem of· foreign rparkets was of vital importance. 

30. A lesser lmown aspect of the growth of the 
French economy had been the unprecedented popula
tion expansion of 1,100,000, or 2.4 per cent, within a 
year, resulting from natural growth, the traditional 
influx of foreign labour and the repatriation of French 
citizens from North Africa. As a result, the demand 
for consumer goods had risen by 6. 7 per cent, as 
against an expected rise of 5.5 per cent, and that was 
one of the main causes of the increase in imports of 
13.3 per cent by volume, instead of 8 per cent as 
anticipated. The movements of population had also 
been largely responsible for the recent uneasiness in 
the French money market, which had necessitated 
the imposition in February 1963 of mildly restrictive 
measures, including the placing of a ceiling on bank 
credits for the next twelve months, a slight increase 
in bank reserves, and ~ change in the interest rate of 
treasucy bonds. 

31. The upsurge in private cons~mption was also 
evidenced by the recent trend of wages and prices, 
which was a matter of concern to the Government. 
Hourly wages Had risen in l9G~ by an avera.ge of 
9 per cent and retail prices by 4.6 per cent, while 
wholesale prices had been held down by more intense 
interr.ational competition and had increased by only 
2.1 per cent. The inevitable consequences of such a 
trend were sufficient grounds for the French authori
ties to take a firm stand against any undue rise in 
wages and prices. The situation had had repercus
sions on the volume of foreign trade, and a surplus 
of 480 million francs in the first half of 1962 had 
been followed by a deficit of 250 million francs in the 
second half of the year. It should be remembered, in 
that connexion, that France had relaxed its import 
policies in recent years through the atmost total 

abolition of quantitative restrictions on manufactured 
goods and through sizable tariff reductions, in re
spect not only of other member countries of the 
European Economic Community, but also of third 
countries. 

32. The French Government was well aware of the 
obligations imposed upon it by its surplus holdings of 
foreign funds. In 1962, only one half of the surplus 
of a little more than $1,000 million had gone to swell 
the currency reserves; the rest had been used to 
make advance repayments of the country's external 
public debt, mainly to the United States. The present 
reserves of almost $4,000 million were, in the view 
of his Government, no cause for either alarm or 
censure: they represented only six months' imports, 
or even less if the needs of the whole franc area 
were considered. Certainly, the reserves appeared 
modest, in view of the proportion of gold and con
vertible currencies respectively which they com
prised, and in view also of the corresponding figures 
for other European countries. The Fund's report gave 
some indication of France's intention to play its part 
in international monetary co-operation, since the 
amount in francs normally available for Withdrawal, 
together with France's participation in the ten
country arrangement and in the "swap" agreement 
with the Federal Reserve -Bank of New Yor.k, made a 
sum equivalent to more than $1,000 million immedi
ately available. 

33. There were a number of prerequisites for the 
maintenance of stability in international payments. 
First, creditor countries must do all they could to 
assist, and France believed it was fulfilling that duty; 
secondly, co~ tries suffering from a d~ficit in their 
foreign payments must adjust their economic and 
financial policies accordingly, as was apparently 
being done, at least by the largest C'f those countries; 
lastly, resources must be available-as in fact they 
were-from international institutions. As regards 
radical reform in the international monetary system, 
his Government had found nothing that was new or 
positive or not open to serious objection in the vari
ous· plans that had been advanced. 

34. The problem of compensatory financing of pri
mary commodity price fluctuations was not new to 
the Council, attd it was largely the untiring work of 
the French delegation in recent years which had led 
the United Nations to give the highest priority to the 
matter of stabilizing commodity .prices. The problem 
would undoubtedly be one of the main subjects which 
would bo dealt With by the United Nations Conference 
on Trade and Development. He was glad to note the 
efforts made by the Fund to assist in seeking a com
prehensive solution, since it was logical for the Fund 
to concern itself With the strictly financial problems 
that might arise in that connexion. It was equally 
important for the United Nations to tackle the. ques
tion of the long-term stabilization of prices, as the 
only means of finding a permanent solution for the 
difficulties which jeopardized the development of 
primary proi:lucing countries. France had always 
pursued a policy of supporting prices and reguhiting 
markets in its dealings with those African producing 
countries with which it had traditional links. The 
agreements signed by the European Economic Com
munity with a number of African States proVided for 
the gradual adaptation of the conditions in which cer
tain tropical items were produced to the conditions 
of sale and consumption in world markets. As his 



22 Economic and Social Council - Thhiy-fifth Session 

delegation had repeatedly stated, France favoured the 
rational organization of commodity markets, as soon 
as possible, wherever it was possible. In the mean• 
time, he hoped that the Fund would apply the new 
arrangements liberally in order to deal with situa
tions. which threatened, not only the balance of pay
ments, but also the economic development of the 
primary producing countries. 

35. It had always seemed unlikely that the world 
monetary situation could be improved by ensuring the 
stability of the leading currencies unless, at the 
same time, the developing countries were able to 
achieve balanced growth. The problem of the develop
ing countries was the great.problem of the day, from 
both the political and the technical point of view, and 
it concerned both the industrial countries and the 
under-developed countries themselves. As the Presi
dents of Mexico and France had stated following their 
recent talks, the highly industrialized nations had a 
duty to co-operate with others with a view to raising 
their level of living, while strictly respecting the 
juridical equality and independence of all peoples. 
36. Mr. PAVICEVIC (Yugoslavia) observed that 
during 1962 the Fund had achieved an outstanding 
tempo of activity and had successfully contributed to 
the solution of monetary problems in many countries. 
Its well-prepared report emphasized' the cent:ral 
problem of the world economy, namely, the accelera
tion of the rate of development of the developing 
countries. He hoped that in its everyday activities the 
Fund would concern itself increasingly with that 
problem. 
37. The need for a new approach to the problems of 
the developing countries had become even more 
apparent now that the whole United Nations family 
was making a critical appraisal of its economic and 
social actf.vities and was· beginning to implement such 
widely conceived plans as the United Nations Develop
ment Decade and the United Nations Conference on 
Trade and Development. It had left behi11d an impor
tant phase of its development during which it had 
clearly identified the problems of the world economy 
and had reached the conclusion that resolute action 
was required to solve them. The moment for such 
action had arrived. 
38. While its intervention hac;l often been timely and 
successful, the Fund' had sometimes granted credits 
on condition that the recipient country carried out 
severe deflationary measures and adopted a more 
liberal foreign trade policy. As a result, in certain 
cases, investment activity in the recipient country 
bad been limited and its rate of economic develop
ment retarded. 
39. Although the Fund had done much to finance 
short-term deficits in the balance of payments of the 
developing countries, the problem of. financing their 
current deficits had become more urgent during the 
last few years. As· a result of fluctuating commodity 
prices and deteriorating terms of trade, their mone
tary reserves had fallen sharply. 1'he Fund must 
adjust itself to the new situation and relate its cr,edit 
terms to their needs and potentialities. The Fund 
should not only act as the guardian of monetary dis
cipline throughout the world, but should alsr '\Qtively 
encourage the accelerated growth of the ; , ·oping 
countries. 
40. The terms under which credits were granted 
sho~ld be further adapted to the changed structure l)f 

member countries and should take into account their 
specific balance-of-payments problems. His delega .. 
tion hoped that, in addition to its normal activity of 
financing deficits in the balance of payments of mem
ber countries, the Fund would contribute to inter
national programmes for· the stabilization .of primary 
commodity markets and participate in the various 
schemes of compensatory financing. · 

41. Mr. UNWIN (United Kingdom) said that ip. the 
last eighteen months the Fund had developed even 
more successfully than in other recent years. That 
was indeed cause for satisfaction. Membership of the 
Fund should soon reach . one hundred and the new 
members were almost all developing countries. 

42. The most important part of the Fund's activities 
had continued to be the provision of monetary assist
ance, mainly for the purpose of overcoming short
term balance-of-payments difficulties and supporting 
the stabilization programmes of the developing coun
tries. A new and important feature had been the much 
greater variety of. currencies in which both draw
ings and repurchases were made. The Fund had be
come a truly multilateral credit·· agency, a welcome 
development. 

43. The Fund had also again provided assistance for 
some of the industrialized countries, notably the 
United Kingdom. The sum of $1,500 million drawn by 
the United· Kingdom in August 1961 had been fully 
repaid. within one year by repurchases of sterling 
from the Fund and by drawings of sterling of other 
members. When the additional stand-by credit of 
$500 million had expired in August 1962, anew stand
by for up to $1,000 million had been arranged for a 
further year. 

44. The new borrowing scheme was a major contri'!" 
button to international stability. It would permit the 
Fund to operate more effectively in the new con
ditions of convertibility. The Fund should be com
mended for the role it had played by its consultations 
under article XIV of the Fund Agreement with mem
bers who maintained exchange restrictions; by its 
provision of technical advice and assistance; by the 
help given to some countries in the preparatory work 
leading to membership of the Fund; and by its contri
butions to the technical training programmes of other 
international organizations. The United Kingdom wel
comed the practice whereby member countries which 
had accepted the ob~igations of article VIII regard?-ng 
convertibility had nevertheless voluntarily continued 
periodic consultations. Also gratifying was the deci
sion which the Fund had taken in the matter of com-
pensatory financing. · 

45 •. All the above developments provided conc:rete 
evidence that the ·Fund was not only a living, growing 
organization, but that its ability to meet the m~eds of 
a wide and increasing range of members was growing 
too. He was confident that that process would con
tinue, that the number of. members would increase, 
that the possibilities offered by"'the Fund would be
come more Widely available, and that the contribution 
which the Fund had already made and was co~tinUing 
to make in greater measure to stability in inter
national payments and to the expansion in inter
national liquidity, and consequently to the developoo 
ment of international trade, would be more widely 
recognized as a major contribution to economic 
development generally and to the United Nations 
Development Decade. 



1245th meeting - 4 April 1963 23 

46. In his statement, the Managing Director of the 
Fund had referred to the policy of financial expansion 
being followed by the United. Kingdom. Statements 
made in London showed that the United Kingdom 
r.,ecognized the value of the Fund's contribution to 
stability and development and was basing its own 
policy upon it. 

47. Mr. WALKER (Australia) pointed out that the 
last six years had been eventful ones in the world of 
finance. The Fund had shown great capacity in dealing 
with critical situations. Equally impressive was its 
record of adaptation to changing conditions and its 
success in organizing the co-operation of the leading 
financial countries to promote the stability of those 
currencies that were most widely used in world 
trade. The countries whose currencies would have 
been shaken by political events, such as those men
tioned by the Managing Director of the Fund, were 
not the only ones to be grateful for the remedial 
action taken. Other countries, largely dependent for 
their deTtelopment upon the orderly expansion of 
world trade, would have faced new difficulties if the 
world's major currencies had fallen into unpredict
able fluctuations. 

48. · The process of growth 111 both developing and 
highly developed countries was in continuous danger 
of being interrupted or at least slowed down by the 
emergence of balance-of-payments di~ficulties. Those 
difficulties could be avoided to some extent if all 
countries were expanding at much the same rate. The 
attempts that were being made to promote mutually 
consistent rates ,~f growth in different countries were 
helpful, but they could not be expected to eliminate 
balance-of-payments difficulties altogether. The 
existence of the Fund and the knowledge that it was 
able and willing to provide temporary finance to tide 
countries over balance-of-payments difficulties en
countered in the course of economic growth made it 
possible for developed and under-developed countries 
alike to pursue their development policies with 
greater confidence and success. 
49. When even wealthy countries had difficulty in 
maintaining equilibrium in their balance of payments, 
the prospects of their providing the sums needed for 
development aid were almost inevitably affected. The 
fear that contributions to fC'Jreign aid programmes 
would add to a country's balance-of-payments prob
lems was often exaggerated. It was unusual for the 
whole of a country's fozoeign aid programme to be 
spent abroad. In so far as a foreign aid contribution 
led to expenc:Hture within the contributing country, 
for exa.mple, for the purchase of capital goods manu
factured in that country, no direct demand for foreign 
currency was involved and there was no immediate 
impact upon the balance of payments. Furthermore, 
when many countries were contributing to foreign aid 
programmes, the part of their contributions that was 
spent abroad and added to their negative balance was 
also added to the positive balance or subtracted from 
the negative balance of other. countries that were 
supplying goods or services to the developi.ng coun
tries. Provided all countries contributed, any danger 

Litho 1n U.N •. 

to the individual balances of payments of each was 
accordingly reduced. Moreover, it there was in fact 
a net negative balance, in the sense that a contribut
ing country was transferring funds to the under
developed countries over and above what was actually 
spent out of aid funds in that country, that tended to 
bring about changes in 1•elative incomes and prices 
in directions that should gradually produce the neces
sary adjustments irt the balances of trade, so that the 
foreign aid contributions would not complicate the 
balance-of-payments problem, However, partly 'be
cause the mechanism worked but imperfectly and 
sometimes slowly, and partly because the whole pr()a 
cess was not sufficiently underF• od, preoccupation 
with the balance of payments con• ued to add to the 
other obstacles in the way of in.~ /ased foreign-aid 
.programmes. The fact that the .v'und could assure 
·contributing countries that they would receive assist-
ance to overcome balance-of-payments difficulties 
might help to create a more favourable clbr..ate for 
development aid programmes. 

50. The Australian Government welcomed the Fund's 
recent decision to create a new compensatory fi
nancing facility. The problem was a vast one which 
could not be completely solved either by the Fund's 
new arrangement or by other forms of compensatory 
financing. The Commission on International Com
modity Trade woul~ take up the matter at its next 
session in April 1963. The Australian Government 
had always considered that compensatory financing 
could at best only alleviate the short-term problems 
and could not be a substitute for positive action to 
improve the longer-term trend in. the terms of trade 
of primary producing countries. The unsatisfactory 
level of export receipts was the crux of the trade 
problem of primary p:r-oducing countries. It could 
only be remedied by fundamental action in relation to 
such matters as world market prices, access to the 
marketE: of industrialized countries and production 
policies in those countries. International · trade 
schemes on a commodity-by-commodity basis were 
needed to tackle those long-term problems. Such 
schemes would go a long way towards moderating the 
short-term fluctuations, the effects of which com
pensatory financing sought to mitigate. There were, 
however, some commodities for which stabilization 
schemes might not be appropriate and some causes 
of fluctuations in export receipts with which ·such 
schemes. could not easily cope (crop failure, for 
example). With those views in mind, the Austra.Uan 
Government welcomed the positive contribution made 
by the Fund towards solving the problem of short
term fluctuation in export receipts. 

51. It also deeply appreciated the general observa
tions made by the Managing Director of the Fund on 
the responsibilities of the industrial countries and 
the developing countries. He was sure that the Manag
ing Direct<J'r's advice would be taken to heart by the 
Council and hoped it would be widely dissetn!nated 
throughout the United Nations. 

The meeting rose at 1.5 p.m. 




